Present: Councillors, Nick Bell, Amanda Brennan, John Gray (Vice Chair), Stephen Walsh and Martine Ward

Also Present: Mrs Baxter (clerk) and 13 members of the public including Mr Chris Board (ABC planning consultant for Lanswood).

District Councillors Ann Wiggins and Gary Scott

Not present: Councillors Paul Beard, Ali Charnick, Pam Cowell and Sally Fairey

19/216 Chairman's welcome

Cllr Gray welcomed everyone and explained that he would be chairing the meeting as Cllr Beard is away. Cllr Gray talked about the etiquette of not speaking when others are speaking.

- **19/217** Apologies for Absence Clirs Beard, Cowell and Fairey sent their apologies.
- **19/218 Declaration of Pecuniary Interests and Non Pecuniary Interests** None.
- 19/219 Approval and signing of the minutes from 17th October 2019. It was resolved to accept the minutes from 17th October 2019 as true and accurate. Proposed: Cllr Bell, Seconded: Cllr Brennan, all in favour.

Cllr Ward arrived.

19/220 To receive an update about the progress of resolutions from the last meeting of the Council on 17th October 2019 not covered in this agenda.

Mrs Baxter gave a verbal update. The wildlife survey is to be brought back to the agenda in spring.

Cllr Brennan asked if it would make more sense to go to Alresford PC with the Alresford Road issues than Wivenhoe TC. Cllr Scott said that they meet on the 1st Wednesday of the month. Some of the verge has been cut back but there is still not room for pedestrians to walk, especially on the bend.

- 19/221 Public Speaking None
- **19/222 County Councillor report** See attached.

19/223 District Councillor reports Cllr Scott reported:

Yesterday they went to an all members briefing. They discussed the Career Track Apprenticeship, where people work at TDC in different departments to learn and earn. Cllr Scott gave the council an information booklet.

There is a department which assists families in hardship, Cllr Scott gave the council a leaflet. He has been attending cabinet and scrutiny meetings.

There has been a week of Tendring for Growth activities.

They have submitted their nominations for the Pride of Tendring Awards, Cllrs Wiggins' is for a group in Elmstead.

There have been lots of fly tipping issues.

Cllr Scott is on the climate change committee. TDC has planted 2,000 trees. They will visit Felixstowe Council so see how they deal with waste.

They have been attending Planning Committee meetings.

Cllr Scott is on the Planning and Policy Committee. They are looking at bringing empty buildings back into use.

There is a group stealing from clothing banks locally, they were caught on CCTV stealing from Alresford.

There were 6,000 complaints last month regarding waste; missed collections and other problems.

The waste wash up meeting to be held on 28th November has been put back due to the general election.

There will be events in Harwich for the Mayflower 400 project.

They attended the Elmstead remembrance service.

They are meeting Mr T Eng tomorrow (Essex Highways) to follow up on the issues they raised, including the Budgens' junction. Mr Eng had promised that engineers would visit to take a look.

Cllr Ward asked why, if Alresford were declaring a climate emergency they hadn't involved us? Cllr Scott explained it is on their next agenda and Cllr Ward asked for it to be added to our next agenda.

19/224 Lanswoodpark Phase 2

i) Update from ABC Planning on Lanswood Park Phase 2 on the proposed development of 10,000m² of commercial space and provision of 74 houses as enabling development.

Mr C Board: This week there has been a mail delivery to Clacton Road properties about the proposal. Lanswood has launched its public consultation. There is a website with information and a feedback facility. The Lanswood contact details are on the website, anyone can contact them and discuss the proposal with them. Mr Board is here to encourage feedback from the PC, but is aware that the PC needs to balance all considerations including the section 106 agreement. The planning application won't have a quick turnaround, TDC will need to consider the viability report which will take a few months. Mr Board suggested that the PC reserves the right to comment later in the process so that it can see what section 106 provisions will be available.

There will be 74 residential units consisting of 2, 3 and 4 bedroom houses.

A resident of Grange Farm explained that they have not responded yet as they are backtracking through legal issues concerning the access route for the Lanswood development being through their access road, which they pay the maintenance for. They asked why the access road could not be through the Lanswood site. Mr Board responded that they wanted to keep the commercial and residential parts separate. Hills gave Lanswood permission to use that access.

Mr Board added that 74 is the maximum capacity of units for the land but that the scheme can possibly be delivered for less. There is a section 106 debate to be had.

There will be an ecology plan. There will be green space (woodland brook) and open spaces to join the woods.

Cllr Scott said that Elmstead could benefit from a roundabout at the Budgens' junction, an upgrade to the crossing for Colchester Road and mains sewerage and gas for the eastern end of the village. Cllr Bell added a speed camera.

The Grange Farm residents pointed out that the pavement along Clacton Road is unusable. There are no facilities within walking distance. There is nothing there for children. There needs to be something for that end of the village.

A resident spoke about having an additional 100 vehicles on the road with the extra 74 houses and commuters. The road is a black spot as it is. From an environmental point of view there will be extra car journeys to take children to school. There is currently an overspill car park which will be developed, where will those cars and the extra cars go? Mr Board responded that a transport consultant is working on a scheme.

The residents will ask for a meeting with Lanswood and take their legal query back to Hills.

It was discussed that this application will go to the Planning Committee and Cllr Scott advised that we can lobby members of the committee by getting their contact details and writing to them.

A resident said that there are lots of bats there at night. Cllr Scott advised the resident to feed that back to TDC and they will contact the Wildlife Trust.

ii) To discuss the above planning proposal and the council's thoughts going forward. This was included above.

iii) It has been proposed that the Chairman and Vice-Chairman attend any future meeting between ABC Planning, Tendring District Council, and Essex County Council on any future development of Lanswoodpark, to include the subject of any planning gain (sec 106 agreement) to the benefit of Elmstead. This will be for information only, with no decision making powers to be delegated.

It was resolved to agree the above proposal. Proposed: Cllr Gray, Seconded: Cllr Walsh, all in favour.

Cllr Scott asked if he and Cllr Wiggins could also be involved with the meetings.

19/225 Planning Gain ideas

To discuss ideas for a list of improvements for Elmstead which could constitute a list of planning gain ideas (for section 106 agreements) for new planning applications. Cllr Gray: It would serve the village well if we had a list of improvements such as the roundabout and crossing discussed previously. He will circulate a list by next Thursday which can be consolidated at the next meeting. Cllr Walsh added that we have got more ideas after this evenings discussions.

19/226 New Community Centre Committee

Any updates?

Cllr Gray: There was no meeting this month. Go Homes has started building. They were 2 months late in starting and it looks as if it will be August or September next year that the £400k is released. Cllr Scott said that he and Ian Davidson will use Sports England funding for sporting activities. There is a TDC meeting in January to discuss health and wellbeing, it may be discussed then.

19/227 Planning Committee

A brief report from the planning committee meeting of 14th November 2019. Cllr Gray:

Barn Conversion at Elmstead Lodge Farm, Bromley Road – we made comments regarding supporting the need for a noise and access plan for the benefit of the neighbours. 2 houses at Grange Farm Bungalow, Clacton Road – we objected to the access to plot 1 being too close to the main road, that it is overdevelopment and raised the point that 9 houses is just below the sec 106 limit which should be considered for any future development here.

19/228 The naming of an Elmstead road after a local resident.

The Parish Council has been asked to support the naming of a road after Mr Peter Potter, who recently passed away.

Mr Ron Tickner, a friend of Mr Potter's, told us some of his history. Mr Potter was in the air force, he was a volunteer, he was involved in charitable activities, he was well known in the village. A proposition was put to Sir Bob Russell to name a street after him, Sir Russell recommended making a request to TDC and they suggested coming to the PC. Cllr Gray added that Mr Potter was a member of the hidden army when he was a teenager, Churchill instigated this hidden army to let the Germans go past if they invaded the UK and cause mayhem to their rear. They were sworn to secrecy. Mr Potter later survived more than 30 bombing missions in the air force.

It was resolved to support the above request. Proposed: Cllr Ward, Seconded: Cllr Bell, all in favour.

Cllr Scott explained that TDC has a committee which looks at road names and as our District Councillors he and Ann will get notification of the request and can add comments. They will also support this.

Mrs Polly Lewis explained that she runs a local history group on the 3rd Thursday afternoon of the month. They discussed this agenda item today and felt that there are several other locals who warrant recognition in this way. Mrs Lewis would like to be involved in this and will raise the names for us. To add to the next agenda.

19/229 Neighbourhood Plan (NHP)

An update on research done so far. To discuss joining RCCE (Rural Community Council of Essex) for £60.50 plus VAT per annum. RCCE provide training and support for councils considering and doing a NHP. To discuss actions points going forward, timings and who will responsible for those.

Mrs Baxter updated the council: Cllrs Fairey and Cowell are pencilled in to attend an RCCE coffee morning on the 5th December – there are only 2 spaces available. When Cllr Fairey gets back she will arrange meetings with Sarah Sapsford (RCCE) and Simon Clark (Alresford PC NHP steering group). RCCE will be doing more training in the new year and can offer packages of support, they will tell us about the options when they meet us. Cllr Gray added that a NHP would help stop speculative planning, and that TDC has to consider our NHP. Cllr Scott said that Alresford are currently having a referendum on their NHP. It is costly but they did get grants.

It was resolved to agree to join RCCE. Proposed: Cllr Bell, Seconded: Cllr Ward, all in favour.

19/230 Chapel Lane and Old School Land LHP (Local Highways Panel) application

To review the response to the application and consider a reply or follow up application. As Cllr Fairey was absent this was deferred to the December meeting.

19/231 Council website

An update.

No update as yet. Deferred to the December meeting.

19/232 The A120/A133 Link Road and Rapid Transit System scheme

A public consultation is now open with a deadline of Monday 16th December. To discuss the options in detail and decide feedback on our preferred option. To discuss ways to further advertise the consultation.

After discussion it was resolve that the council response would be on 2 points:

- To avoid the woodland (Strawberry Grove) and prefer the options where the link road meets the A120 further west.
- To ask what has happened to the buffer zone, we were told that the link road would be the edge of the development.

Proposed: Cllr Walsh, Seconded: Cllr Ward, all in favour. The clerk will circulate a draft response for comments.

19/233 Clacton Road Car Park.

An update on the flytipping and waste problems here. Mr Leach, a TDC officer, has said that he will attend the car park every time he is nearby, which should be at least twice a week. He is going to speak with an individual who was identified by their flytipping waste. He will explore our suggestions for ways to improve the situation.

19/234 Finance

i) To look through the finance report and approve the payments for November. See appendix 1.

Signature

It was resolved to accept the finance report and approve the payments. Proposed: Cllr Ward, Seconded: Cllr Bell, all in favour.

ii) To review quotes for the annual servicing of the mower.

We currently have 2 quotes, one from Upsons and one from Ernest Doe, which includes a discount if booked before the end of December. It was suggested that a 3rd quote could be sought from GB Farm services or John Deere in Ardleigh.

It was resolved to delegate the power to decide which provider to use once a 3rd quote has been obtained to Mrs Baxter as the proper office of the council. Proposed: Cllr Gray, Seconded: Cllr Brennan, all in favour.

19/235 Communications Items of interest for inclusion in our December Upmarket report in addition to the report of meeting.

Mrs Routledge explained to the council that she writes the Upmarket article on their behalf so when she asks for feedback, comments or answers to specific questions could councillors please respond. Even if it's just to say that the article is fine. Mrs Routledge needs the council's input as she is not a councillor.

19/236 Items for next agenda or for information only.

Mrs Williams introduced herself. She attended the meeting with a view to joining the council. She said that having heard from the Grange Farm residents earlier, and living on the edge of the village herself, she would like to support those residents. Cllr Bell asked for Finch Lane and a speed camera to be added to the next agenda.

19/237 Date of next meeting

The next meeting will be held on 19th December at 7pm.

There being no further public business councillors were thanked for their attendance. The meeting closed at 9.18pm.

Minutes written by Mrs. A Baxter Contact: 01206 827139

Signature

ECC Report November 2019

Chelmsford Car Dealer sentenced at Crown Court for misleading consumers

As the Christmas season approaches Essex Trading Standards are once again renewing their warnings to be very vigilant towards any potential scams.

- 1. Never give out any bank details, however genuine the requests may appear.
- 2. Never buy from doorstep salesmen.
- 3. Buy With Confidence, and check out credentials on https://www.buywithconfidence.gov.uk Any business listed is Trading Standards Approved –Essex-Thurrock-Southend-councils
- 4. If in doubt get in touch <u>https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/consumer/get-more-help/report-to-trading-standards/</u>

A car dealership in Chelmsford was sentenced at Chelmsford Crown Court, on Friday 1st November 2019, following a conviction for misleading consumers as a result of an Essex Trading Standards investigation.

His Honour Judge Seely sentenced Saxton 4x4 Ltd to pay a fine of £27,375 and costs of £37,375. Three victims were also awarded compensation.

Judge Seely remarked that "there were elements of deliberate mis-selling and that there were a number of very poor business practices relating to the sale of the vehicle in question." The business was sentenced in relation to 6 counts of misleading consumers.

The prosecution arises as a result of complaints received and a subsequent investigation by Essex Trading Standards around the sale and description of a vehicle sold by Saxton 4x4 Ltd of Westway, Chelmsford on more than one occasion in 2017 and 2018.

During the trial the jury at Chelmsford Crown Court heard from counsel for the prosecution, Alison Lambert, that the vehicle had been sold to the first customer as a 2015 vehicle and it was discovered by that customer via the main dealer that it had in fact been first registered in Germany in 2011.

He informed the business and was refunded. The vehicle then went on to be sold by the business on two further occasions and a non-returnable deposit placed by another potential customer based on an inaccurate description.

Each time the business was informed of the problems with the age description of the vehicle and they failed to modify their advertisements or any of their sales communications to reflect the real age of the vehicle or to inform the subsequent purchasers of the true age of the vehicle.

Essex Trading Standards brought the prosecution under The Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008.

When sentencing, His Honour Judge Seely added that he found the company's submission that they had not received four recorded delivery letters [highlighting the true date of first registration] "wholly implausible" and that he "rejected it entirely".

He also added he found some of the company witnesses "unimpressive to say the least". In response to the sentencing, Cllr Susan Barker, Cabinet Member for Customer, Corporate, Culture and Communities, said: "The purchase of car is often the second largest financial decision that a consumer makes, they need to feel confident that they can rely on the information provided by the dealer. Essex County Council Trading Standards has an ongoing commitment to protect consumers and ensure a level playing field for businesses."

Essex businesses lead the way with green technology

"Climate change is everybody's business and I'm pleased to see Essex businesses leading the way by using innovative, green technology."

That's the message from Cllr Tony Ball, Essex County Council's Cabinet Member for Economic Development, following his recent visit to Taylor Construction Plant (TCP) in Maldon.

The company specialises in cutting-edge, environmentally friendly technology, and produce low-energy, hydrogen-fuelled LED lighting towers for the construction, rail and events sectors

The whole manufacturing process releases zero emissions, making them a completely ecofriendly lighting solution.

It is hoped that more businesses in Essex will invest in similar ways of working and commit to using manufacturing and production processes which reduce the impact on the environment.

Cllr Tony Ball said, "We are absolutely committed to looking at new ways that we can reduce environmental impact across the county and it's been fantastic to learn more about the businesses in Essex that are already developing green solutions and leading the way globally. I'd like to thank the team at TCP for taking the time to share how they're working towards a cleaner, greener climate."

Andrew Barker, MD, TCP said, "It was a pleasure to meet Cllr Ball and I'm really pleased he was able to take the time to visit us.

"This is a very exciting time and we're proud to be leading the way with a clean air, virtually silent alternative to things like diesel generators that use continual fuel consumption regardless of need. The greener the energy source, the better the environmental benefit for us all."

Climate change and the environment is currently at the forefront of the county council's agenda and Cllr Ball's visit comes off the back of ECC's recent announcement of a new Climate Change Commission.

The new cross-party group will look to reduce CO2, reduce waste, promote sustainable transport and work to combat climate change, supported by initial funding of £250,000. The council also recently announced the announced the Essex Forest Initiative – a million pound tree project which will include planting 375,000 trees across the county over the next 5 years, equivalent to the size of 210 football pitches, which will capture 60,000 tonnes of carbon.

Further information:

• More information about ECC's Climate Change Commission can be found here <u>https://www.essex.gov.uk/news/new-climate-change-commission-for-the-county</u>

• TCP is head-quartered in Maldon, Essex (with depots in Coventry, Essex, Leeds, Exeter and Scotland) and offers nation-wide rental and sales from sites across the UK.

• The TCP LED lighting tower is powered by the BOC Hymera fuel cell. Instead of polluting exhaust fumes, they produce clean power and water vapour. On top of their zero emissions status, they produce zero noise, complying with section 61 (Control of Pollution Act 1974)

• The lighting tower is increasingly popular with the construction, rail and events sectors. With zero site emissions, zero noise and zero spill risk, the environmentally friendly off-grid power resource requires minimal maintenance and can be easily transported due to their compact lightweight design. This cutting-edge technology is a way of reducing air pollution when powering tools, lighting, welfare units and other equipment.

• For more information about TCP, contact Nadine Daines ndaines@tcp.eu.com tel: 01621 850777

Demolition of Army and Navy flyover to take big step forward

Plans to demolish the Army and Navy flyover are set to take a significant step forward with firms invited to formally bid for the work.

Several specialist contractors have already expressed an interest in removing the flyover in Chelmsford and they will be encouraged to firm up that interest when the tender documents go out next month.

Essex County Council announced in September that the flyover would be permanently closed after a detailed engineering report revealed new defects within its concrete foundations. The council is now seeking to have the structure removed as soon as possible and is also continuing to work on a long-term solution to ease congestion and delays at the junction. Initial options for the junction will be shared with the public for the first time this autumn. A full public consultation on a revised shortlist of options will follow later once detailed testing and modelling has been completed.

Cllr Kevin Bentley, Deputy Leader of Essex County Council and Cabinet Member for Infrastructure, said: "The Army and Navy is a crucial gateway to Chelmsford and, together with the support of the Army and Navy Taskforce, we are working incredibly hard on options for a long-term solution.

"In the meantime, we are looking to remove the flyover and have already had a strong response from companies interested in the demolition. I am pleased they will soon be able to formally bid for the work.

"I would like to assure people that we are doing everything we can to progress as quickly as possible with both the removal of the flyover and the development of potential long-term improvements at the junction.

"However, we must also ensure we get it right and provide a sustainable solution that is an asset to the city which does not put additional pressure on other roads in the city centre."

Progress with the scheme continues to be discussed with both the Army and Navy Taskforce and Great Baddow East Neighbourhood Association.

To help manage congestion at the Army and Navy junction, the council is continuing to encourage the community to play its part by avoiding peak periods or, where possible, switching to other modes of transport such as bikes, buses or walking.

More information about travel options in Essex, including car sharing, Park and Ride services, walking and cycle routes, and bus services, is available at: www.essex.gov.uk/travelplanning

For the latest news on the junction and to sign up for the scheme email newsletter, please visit <u>www.essex.gov.uk/armyandnavy</u>

Senior Cabinet Minister welcomed to Harwich and Essex

A senior cabinet minister visited Harwich to see Brexit preparation at one of the UK's busiest ports first hand, meet local politicians and police who have been leading Brexit work in the county and talk to local businesses about their own preparedness.

The Right Honourable Robert Jenrick MP, Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government, was welcomed on 10th October by representatives from Essex County Council, Essex Police, Tendring District Council and other authorities from across the county.

The Secretary of State toured Harwich port before a roundtable discussion with leading local businesses including Surya Foods, Dura Composites, Pickering Interfaces and the COLBEA business enterprise agency. Directors from these companies outlined their preparations for Brexit directly to the Minister.

The Minister then shared his Brexit advice with the representatives present, stating:

• Businesses should prepare for leaving the EU on 31st October.

• Companies with any specific issues surrounding Brexit should get in touch with the Government immediately.

• Any companies with EU citizens working for them should encourage these employees to register for the EU settlement scheme by December 2020.

Chairman of the Essex Resilience Forum Chief Constable BJ Harrington of Essex Police outlined the work of the forum in planning for Brexit across Essex and in co-ordinating the response of public service providers to help residents continue to live their daily lives after Brexit.

The Minister was also taken through the county's approach to traffic control, with Essex County Council, Thurrock Council, Southend Council and Essex Police all working together to keep the county moving immediately following Brexit.

The Secretary of State praised the partnership approach to Brexit taken in Essex, with all authorities and agencies collaboratively working together.

Cllr Kevin Bentley, Deputy Leader of Essex County Council, attended the visit in his role as head of Local Government Association's Brexit task force.

Cllr Bentley said: "I'm very pleased that the secretary of state visited Harwich, to view the hard work that has been done all authorities and agencies within Essex.

"I feel it was important the minister saw for himself how important a port Harwich is going forward, whether there is a deal or a no deal.

"It's the only port linked directly to a major airport by a single road, the A120, and I have conveyed upon the Secretary of State the importance of that road.

"I feel the minister left Harwich and Essex with an understanding that we are preparing for Brexit in any scenario and this is a point I would underline to all county residents – we are preparing for Brexit."

Cllr Neil Stock OBE, Leader of Tendring District Council, said: "In terms of Brexit it was useful to discuss the extensive planning and preparations made by the port, partners and ourselves with the Secretary of State to see what he can do to help us maximise the opportunities afforded to us by leaving the EU – such as the potential for establishing a free port at Harwich."

A120/A133 Link Road and Rapid Transit System consultation

4th November was the launch of Essex County Council's public consultation on options for the A120/A133 Link Road and Rapid Transit System (RTS).

This follows the successful £99million bid for Housing Infrastructure Funding which will enable the creation of the new Link Road and for the first stages of an RTS to be implemented linking up key parts of Colchester.

Within the consultation brochure, we set out the differing route alignment options for both schemes and are looking for public views to enable preferred options to be selected and more detailed design to take place.

Signature	Date
-----------	------

The dual-carriageway Link Road will be completed by 2024, supporting proposed future growth east of Colchester, helping manage traffic flows and making it easier for those travelling from Tendring to access the strategic network (A12/A120) while reducing the impact on more local roads.

A high-quality RTS can move people en masse quickly and efficiently across an area. Through creating a priority public transport corridor linking in key locations such as Colchester Town Centre, university, railway stations and park and ride we can better connect Colchester, giving people a genuine alternative to their car and providing a significant boost to the local economy. Connected to this will be a new 'Park and Choose' site. This is a concept which is explained within the consultation brochure. It is about recognising that the best-connected places are 'multi-modal' in that they bring together cycling, walking and public transport.

The consultation brochure can be downloaded at: <u>www.essex.gov.uk/link-road-and-rapid-transit</u> with comments required by the 16th December.

To support the consultation a series of public drop-in events will be held over the coming weeks at which technical specialists will be on hand to answer questions:

Wivenhoe House	Tuesday 12 November	1pm - 8pm
Greenstead Community Centre	Friday 15 November	1pm - 6pm
St John's Church and Community Centre	Thursday 21 November	1pm - 8pm
Colchester Community Stadium	Saturday 23rd November	10am – 5pm
Wivenhoe House	Monday 25 November	1pm - 8pm
Colchester Community Stadium	Monday 9 December	1pm - 8pm

If you have any queries on the consultation please email <u>Linkroadandrapidtransit@essexhighways.org</u> and our team will be happy to come back to you

Essex schools urged to embrace free programme to help vulnerable young people

Secondary and Primary schools across Essex are being urged to sign up to the Risk-Avert programme, which helps children and young people understand and manage risk, improve decision-making and leads to improvements in emotional health and resilience.

Risk-Avert, which has been developed jointly by Essex County Council Public Health and The Training Effect (TTE), has been running in Essex for the past six years and is free for schools to run.

Since the project's inception 75 per cent of the county's Secondary schools have participated and since the official launch of the Primary programme in the last academic year, 10 per cent of all Primary schools have taken part.

Councillor Ray Gooding, Essex County Council Cabinet Member for Education, said: "At Essex County Council we work hard to enable all children to fulfil their potential and we want to improve the health of all residents of Essex.

"Results in the schools which have followed the Risk-Avert programme have been very encouraging and I hope more schools in Essex will take up the initiative.

"Next year, new statutory requirements for Personal, Social, Health and Economic (PSHE) Education will come into force. This initiative will fulfil those PSHE curriculum

requirements and improve the mental health and resilience of young people. I feel it's a winwin situation."

Risk-Avert is an evidence-based, secondary school programme which identifies young people vulnerable to multiple risk-taking behaviours and provides universal and targeted interventions through a life skills-based programme.

Pupils at risk of engaging in early-onset risk-taking are identified through a screening tool administered to all pupils in year 8. The survey also identifies those young people experiencing early and emerging emotional health difficulties and offers a distinct, targeted programme for these pupils.

The award-winning Risk-Avert also offers a primary school programme which aims to support the transition from primary to secondary education. It is focused on the teaching of positive social norms and protective behaviours. Participating schools are asked to complete an anonymous survey with year 6 pupils and deliver four sessions over the summer term. Mark Bowles, Director, TTE, said: "Young people are exposed to many risks such as drugs, alcohol, knife crime and bullying. The Risk-Avert programme provides teachers and students an opportunity to develop strong, positive relationships in a supportive environment. It also allows students to learn about risk-taking, improve decision-making and develop the skills that will help them safely navigate adolescence."

The targeted element of Risk-Avert is delivered over six sessions. In addition, schools are also provided with additional resources, including a full PSHE (Personal, Social, Health and Education) curriculum mapped to the new statutory requirements for schools from September 2020 and resources to support parents.

Mark Bowles continued: "With the new statutory requirements for PSHE coming into force next year, Risk-Avert is now providing a full PSHE curriculum, to enable schools to fulfill the requirements in one simple, free programme.

"Since its inception around 30,000 pupils have engaged with Risk-Avert and independent evaluation conducted by the University of Bath has shown that over 75 per cent of pupils experience an improvement in mental health and 74 per cent see improvements in their resilience alongside improvements in their ability to make independent decisions and feel better prepared to overcome adverse situations.

The feedback and evidence we receive shows the extent of the impact the programme can have and we really want to encourage all Essex schools to get involved this year to benefit not only from the Risk-Avert programme but also the new PSHE curriculum." More information on Risk-Avert is available at: <u>www.risk-avert.org</u>

Mark Bowles is available for interview to expand on Risk-Avert and the results the programme is achieving.

For further information contact: Sananur Meric or Charlie Vavasour, Quantum Public Relations, email: <u>sananur@quantumpr.co.uk</u> or call 01233 500200 About TTE

The Training Effect (TTE) is a leading provider of health-based intervention around children and young people. Founded in 2011, it has quickly become an established provider to the public sector, private and third sector.

The Training Effect designs, develops and delivers training, health intervention programmes and services which save money, improve outcomes and support frontline service delivery. All TTE staff are subject-specific experts in their particular professional field. This means we bring real world expertise and practical solutions to all of our projects. We are experts in substance misuse, families with complex needs, risk-taking behaviour, emotional and mental health.

About Risk-Avert

Signature

Through the Risk-Avert website, participating schools are provided with all the required programme resources to effectively deliver all aspects of the programme. Secondary Schools are required to send at least one member of staff on a one-day training course (delivered by The Training Effect) after completion of which they receive access to all Pick Avert resources. The terrated element of the programme is delivered over 6 sessions. In

Risk Avert resources. The targeted element of the programme is delivered over 6 sessions. In addition, schools are provided with additional resources including a full PSHE curriculum mapped to the new statutory requirements for schools from September 2020 and resources to support parents.

Primary Schools do not attend training but video guides to deliver each session are provided alongside all required programme resources hosted on the Risk-Avert Primary website. Primary schools are asked to register their interest directly with The Training Effect after which they will receive access to programme resources and unlimited support from the team at The Training Effect.

Signature Date